







# Training of Trainers in Thessaloniki (GR)

10.03.2022

Training material on PONTOS Data Cube

Acknowledgement: PONTOS project has received funding from the ENI CBC Joint Operational Programme Black Sea Basin 2014 - 2020 under Grand Agreement BSB 889.

Lecturer: Maria Banti, MSc, Research Assistant at CERTH/ITI

This tutorial material was prepared in cooperation with Dr. Ioannis Manakos, Principal Researcher in Remote Sensing at CERTH/ITI

Contact Details: Centre for Research and Technology Hellas (CERTH), Information Technologies Institute (ITI), Building A, 6<sup>th</sup> km Harilaou-Thermi, 57001, Thermi, Thessaloniki, Tel: +30 2311 257 760, e-mail: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u> Website: http://eos.iti.gr/







### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Introduction
2. Theoretical background
3. Technical overview
4. Tool guide
4.1 Water-based tools
4.1.1 Water Detection
4.1.2 Water Quality – TSM7
4.1.3 Coastal Change
4.2 Land-based tools
4.2.1 Urbanization
4.2.2 Spectral Indices
4.2.3 Spectral Anomaly
4.2.4 Fractional Cover
4.3 General tools
4.3.1 Custom Mosaic
4.3.2 Cloud Coverage
5. User Interface guide
5.1 How to login/ register
5.2 Data Cube Manager
5.3 Performing an analysis
5.4 Task manager
6. Exercise
References

For more information please contact CERTH at: imanakos@iti.gr, mbanti@iti.gr

CROSS FORDER







### 1. INTRODUCTION

This training material aims to facilitate the training of trainers on PONTOS Data Cube taking place in Thessaloniki on 10.03.2022. PONTOS Data Cube, as an essential part of the PONTOS platform, targets on easing the production of maps from Earth Observation (EO) satellite data and supporting the means by which environmental monitoring in the Black Sea Basin area is accomplished. Following the launch of the PONTOS platform, end-users, i.e., stakeholders, researchers, students, will be enabled to use the various tools offered by PONTOS Data Cube in relation with the different PONTOS pilot sites. In this training material, the theoretical background and the functionalities of PONTOS Data Cube are presented.

### 2. THEORETICAL BACKGROUND

Remotely acquired Earth Observation (EO) data are essential in enhancing our knowledge and understanding of Earth processes as well as in supporting long-term global coverage of them through time.

For the assistance and support of environmental monitoring and decision making based on EO data, the Earth has been constantly observed by satellites since 1972, providing regular and multispectral observations of the planet (Giuliani et al., 2020). Nowadays, researchers are able to reach a variety of remote sensing information in the form of images acquired by various and diverse satellites and sensors in plentiful temporal, spatial and spectral resolutions.

However, conventional approaches in terms of acquisition, distribution, store, management and analysis of EO data are liable to limitations regarding volume (e.g., tera to petabytes), variety and heterogeneity (e.g., radar or optical) and velocity (e.g., new data are becoming available on a daily basis). Stepping further from conventional local infrastructures (e.g., desktop computers) and data distribution methods (e.g., scene-based file download) (CEOS, 2017) to open source software and analysis platforms (Dhu et al., 2019) is regarded as a fundamental advancement in tackling the challenges with reference to accessing, processing and storing EO data.

Multi-dimensional Data Cubes (DC) are regarded as an innovative approach and an effective solution in storing, organizing, managing and analyzing EO data by addressing volume, variety and velocity challenges. The term "Data Cube" indicates a set of image time series affiliated with spatially aligned







**pixels.** Data Cubes of EO imagery, e.g., PONTOS Data Cube, are three-dimensional objects since each component possesses one temporal and two spatial dimensions (i.e., longitude and latitude) (Figure 1).

In this direction, the Earth Observation Satellite Commission (CEOS) System Engineering Office (SEO) has played a key role in the development of the Open Data Cube (ODC) software through a separate initiative called the "CEOS Data Cube" (CDC) (Rizvi et al., 2018). The ODC software targets on leveraging the various possibilities of EO satellite data as well as enlarging the provision of satellite Analysis Ready Data (ARD) products to end-users.

Centre for Research and Technology Hellas (CERTH) has adopted the previously mentioned approach in terms of PONTOS project and the implementation of PONTOS platform. PONTOS Data Cube was implemented in the direction of enabling end-users with the ability of easy exploration, analysis, management and visualization of satellite EO ARD for each pilot of this project. It aims to strengthen the value and impact of EO satellite data in the Black Sea Basin and each pilot area of PONTOS project by addressing some essential needs of EO satellite data users, as it:



Figure 1. Dimensional axes of an EO Data Cube (Kopp et al., 2019).

- decreases time and specialized knowledge that is required in order to access, explore and process satellite data,
- contains a big volume of EO ARD satellite data in order to minimize the time and complexity that their pre-processing demands,
- does not require the availability of computational infrastructure on the side of the end-user,
- includes tools which can be used to perform various analyses by exploiting EO ARD satellite data.

### 3. TECHNICAL OVERVIEW

PONTOS Data Cube constitutes a Python web-application. It is built on CEOS SEO Open Data Cube (ODC) software suite, release 2.21, which encloses a collection of Python frameworks and libraries and a PostgreSQL database for the purpose of accessing, exploring, managing, performing analyses and visualizing satellite EO ARD. The fully customizable open-source code of CEOS SEO ODC is publicly available under Apache License, Version 2.0., at CEO SEO's public repository (https://github.com/ceos-seo). PONTOS Data Cube couples a user-friendly web-design with a modular architecture generating a web-based user-friendly User Interface (UI), which seizes the possibilities of the Open Data Cube software.

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>

Page 3 of 25

CLOSS FORDER







In the back-end, the PostgreSQL database is used to index and ingest EO satellite data and their metadata. EO data are managed as GeoTIFF data format during the indexing, while as Network Common Data Format (NetCDF) files during the ingestion process. The above mentioned data are handled with the use of Geospatial Data Abstraction Library (GDAL) (Appel & Pebesma, 2019) and specific Python libraries (e.g., numpy, matplotlib, scikit-learn, scipy, rasterio etc.).

ARD datasets from multiple EO satellite missions contained in PONTOS Data Cube can be accessed through various offered tools (please refer to Chapter 4.) in order for the end-user to perform custom analysis cases over specific user-defined areas and time ranges (please refer to Chapter 5.2). PONTOS Data Cube incorporates ARD satellite datasets over PONTOS project's defined regions of interest. These datasets correspond to:

- Landsat 5 TM USGS Collection 1 Higher Level SR scenes (Level 2) in a spatial resolution of 30m for the time range 1984 to 2011,
- Landsat 7 ETM+ USGS Collection 1 Higher Level SR scenes (Level 2) in a spatial resolution of 30m for the time range 1999 to 2021,
- Landsat 8 OLI/TIRS USGS Collection 1 Higher Level SR scenes (Level 2) in a spatial resolution of 30m for the time range 2013 to 2021,
- Sentinel-2 MSI Level-2A scenes in a spatial resolution of 10m for the time range 2015 to 2021.

This archive contains approximately 99,000 images (Figure 2.), occupying a total volume of 20.82 TB.



Figure 2. Overview of images number contained within PONTOS Data Cube broken down by year and satellite mission.

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>

Page 4 of 25

100.00	14	CLOSS ROPORT	
	<u> </u>	CROOPS FORDER.	
	<b>1</b> 1	COOLEMATION	







Regarding the defined areas that are incorporated and custom analyses to be performed in PONTOS Data Cube, those correspond to PONTOS' pilot sites:

- PONTOS AM (Armenia): Sevan Lake and Sevan Lake Basin
- PONTOS GE (Georgia): Rioni River Delta and Kolkheti National Park
- PONTOS GR (Greece): Nestos River and Nestos River Delta
- PONTOS UA (Ukraine): Coastline from Odessa city to the Danube river delta as well as Dniester river delta area and adjacent estuary.

As PONTOS Data Cube operates with the ingested products, i.e., in NetCDF format, of EO datasets, the names of the ingested EO datasets for each corresponding pilot area and EO dataset source are presented in detail in Table 1.

Pilot Area	EO Dataset Source	Ingested product name
<b>A M</b>	Landsat 7	ls7_ledaps_AM_Sevan_Lake
Alvi Soven Jake & Soven	Landsat 8	ls8_lasrc_AM_Sevan_Lake
Sevan Lake & Sevan	Landsat 5	ls5_ledaps_AM_Sevan_Lake
Lake Dasin	Sentinel-2	s2_l2a_AM_Sevan_Lake
CE	Landsat 7	ls7_ledaps_GE_KolkhetiNP
GE Diani Divar Dalta 8	Landsat 8	ls8_lasrc_GE_KolkhetiNP
KIOIII KIVEI Deila Q	Landsat 5	ls5_ledaps_GE_KolkhetiNP
KOIKHELI National Park	Sentinel-2	s2_l2a_GE_KolkhetiNP
CP.	Landsat 7	ls7_ledaps_GR_Nestos
Un Nactos Divar & Nastos	Landsat 8	ls8_lasrc_GR_Nestos
Nesius Kiver & Nesius	Landsat 5	ls5_ledaps_GR_Nestos
Deita	Sentinel-2	s2_I2a_GR_Nestos
	Landsat 7	ls7_ledaps_UA_Dniester
UA Dejector Diver Delta	Landsat 8	ls8_lasrc_UA_Dniester
Dillester River Derta	Landsat 5	ls5_ledaps_UA_Dniester
area & aujacent estuary	Sentinel-2	s2_l2a_UA_Dniester

Table 1. Names of ingested EO products per pilot area and dataset source.

### 4. TOOL GUIDE

PONTOS Data Cube includes the deployment and support of several tools aiming to offer analyses of ARD in relation to water detection and quality, coastal change, spectral indices, fractional cover, custom mosaics and urbanization as well. These tools can be accessed through PONTOS Data Cube User Interface and they

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>

CLOSS HORDER







are divided into three main groups: water, land and general tools. The following sections comprise a complete listing of the supported tools as well as a glossary of processing options unique to each tool.

### 4.1 WATER-BASED TOOLS

The water group contains tools related to:

- Water Detection Water Observations from Space (WOfS)
- Water Quality Total Suspended Matter (TSM)
- Coastal Change Change in a coastal region

#### 4.1.1 WATER DETECTION

The water detection analysis tool allows users to run the WOfS (Water Observations from Space) algorithm on a selected area. WOfS constitutes a multi-spectral decision tree tool aiming to detect water (Figure 3.). It was developed in Australia (Mueller et al., 2016) focusing on improved water detection over standard water quality flags in Landsat products. The output is a time series of water classifications and observations (Figure 4.). This can indicate water cycle dynamics, historical water extent, and the risk of floods and droughts.



Figure 4. WOfS analysis over an area in Ukraine.



Options:

#### **Image Background Color**

- Black: Sets the background to solid black
- White: Sets the background to solid white
- Transparent: Displays the selected area as the background

For more information please contact CERTH at: imanakos@iti.gr, mbanti@iti.gr

Page 6 of 25







### 4.1.2 WATER QUALITY – TSM

This tool forms a water quality product based on an empirical algorithm developed in Australia. Particularly TSM is an index that uses Red and Green bands for the assessment of water quality and turbidity as an indicator of water condition (Lymburner et al., 2016). The output (Figure 5.) depicts the average TSM as grams per liter (g/L) (Figure 6.).





Figure 5. TSM tool's legend.

Figure 6. TSM analysis over an area in Georgia.

### Options:

### **Result Type (Map view/PNG)**

- Average TSM: Display the average TSM of every observation for the given pixel
- Minimum TSM: Display the lowest TSM from every observation for the given pixel
- Maximum TSM: Display the highest TSM from every observation for the given pixel
- TSM Variability: Variability of Total Suspended Matter







### 4.1.3 COASTAL CHANGE

Detection of changes in coastal boundaries comprises the main target of this algorithm, which is based on the WOfS algorithm. This tool results on the measurement of change in a coastal region based on two selected time periods (Figure 7.). It can display both the overall change in the coastal area as well as highlight gain or loss in coastlines (Figure 8.).





Figure 7. Coastal change analysis over Nestos River Delta in Greece.

Figure 8. Coastal change tool's legend.

#### 4.2 LAND-BASED TOOLS

The land group contains tools related to:

- Urbanization Normalized Difference Built-up Index (NDBI)
- Spectral Indices Normalized Difference Vegetation Index (NDVI), Normalized Difference Water Index (NDWI), Normalized Difference Built Index (NDBI), Enhanced Vegetation Index (EVI), Soil Adjusted Vegetation Index (SAVI), Normalized Burn Ratio (NBR), Normalized Burn Ration 2 (NBR 2)
- Spectral Anomaly Deviation in NDVI index from a specific baseline period
- Fractional Coverage Vegetational fractional cover







### 4.2.1 URBANIZATION

This tool offers a measurement in the growth or loss of urbanized land in a selected area (Figure 9.). It uses NDBI (Normalized Difference Built-Up Index) as a proxy that correlates with urbanization (Figure 10.).



Figure 9. Urbanization over a selected region in Sevan's Lake Basin in Armenia.

Options:

### **Compositing method**

- Least Recent Pixel: Creates a composite of the least recent pixels with no cloud coverage
- Max NDVI Pixel: Creates a composite using pixels with the max NDVI values
- Median Pixel: Creates a composite of the median recent pixels with no cloud coverage
- Min NDVI Pixel: Creates a composite using pixels with the min NDVI values
- Most Recent Pixel: Creates a composite of the most recent pixels with no cloud coverage



Figure 10. Urbanization tool's legend.

### 4.2.2 SPECTRAL INDICES

The selected spectral index can be used to monitor changes over a defined period of time for a particular feature of interest. This tool offers the calculation of the following spectral indices (Chatenoux et al., 2019):

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>

Page 9 of 25

CLOSS HORDER







- Normalized Difference Vegetation Index (NDVI): Constitutes the most common vegetation index where NDVI = (NIR-Red) / (NIR+Red).
- Normalized Difference Water Index (NDWI): A common index for water detection where NDWI = (Green-NIR) / (Green+NIR).
- Normalized Difference Built-up Index (NDBI): An index for detecting urbanization (Figure 3.9) where NDBI = (SWIR1-NIR) / (SWIR1+NIR).
- Enhanced Vegetation Index (EVI): Comprises an optimized vegetation index aiming to advance the vegetation signal with improved sensitivity over high biomass regions. EVI in the case of Lansat (Landsat EVI) is equivalent to 2.5 \* (NIR-Red) / (NIR + 6\*Red 7.5\*Blue + 1).
- Soil Adjusted Vegetation Index (SAVI): An index aiming to correct Normalized Difference Vegetation Index (NDVI) for the influence of soil brightness in areas where vegetative cover is low (<u>https://www.usgs.gov/core-science-systems/nli/landsat/landsat-soil-adjusted-vegetation-index</u>). In terms of Landsat, for Landsat 4-7 it is equivalent to ((Band 4 Band 3) / (Band 4 + Band 3 + 0.5)) \* (1.5), while for Landsat 8 SAVI = ((Band 5 Band 4) / (Band 5 + Band 4 + 0.5)) \* (1.5).
- Normalized Burn Ratio (NBR): An index similar to NDBI that is used to estimate burn severity. NBR= (NIR-SWIR1) / (NIR+SWIR1).

Options:

### **Compositing method**

- Least Recent Pixel: Creates a composite of the least recent pixels with no cloud coverage
- Max NDVI Pixel: Creates a composite using pixels with the max NDVI values
- Median Pixel: Creates a composite of the median recent pixels with no cloud coverage
- Min NDVI Pixel: Creates a composite using pixels with the min NDVI values
- Most Recent Pixel: Creates a composite of the most recent pixels with no cloud coverage

### 4.2.3 SPECTRAL ANOMALY

This tool offers the identification of deviations in NDVI index starting from a specified baseline period. The output will indicate the areas with noteworthy increases and decreases in vegetation.

Options:

### **Baseline Period**

Select the month(s) to focus the analysis on with the given time period.

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>

Page 10 of 25

CLOSS HORDER







### 4.2.4 FRACTIONAL COVER

It is used to estimate the average vegetation fractional cover utilizing a linear unmixing technique developed by (Guerschman, 2016). In terms of FC, each individual pixel is classified as a fraction of photosynthetic and nonphotosynthetic vegetation (PV and NPV, respectively) and the remaining fraction of bare soil (BS) (Figure 11.).



Figure 11. Fractional cover output over a region in Georgia's pilot.

### 4.3 GENERAL TOOLS

The general tools group contains tools related to:

- Custom Mosaic Creation of cloud-free composites
- Cloud Coverage Mosaic displaying cloud coverage

#### 4.3.1 CUSTOM MOSAIC

This tool enables the end-users to produce cloud free composites of imagery (Figure 12.).

Options:

#### **Result Type**

The composite of any selected band among NIR, SWIR1, SWIR2, RED, GREEN and BLUE can be selected.

#### **Compositing method**

- Least Recent Pixel: Creates a composite of the least recent pixels with no cloud coverage
- Max NDVI Pixel: Creates a composite using pixels with the max NDVI values
- Median Pixel: Creates a composite of the median recent pixels with no cloud coverage

For more information please contact CERTH at: imanakos@iti.gr, mbanti@iti.gr

Page 11 of 25







- Min NDVI Pixel: Creates a composite using pixels with the min NDVI values
- Most Recent Pixel: Creates a composite of the most recent pixels with no cloud coverage



Figure 12. True color composite of an area in Nestos River Delta in Greece.

### 4.3.2 CLOUD COVERAGE

This tool produces a mosaic depicting cloud coverage by calculating the percentage of pixels that are identified as clouds for the acquisitions that are selected.



Figure 13. Cloud coverage output over a selected area in Sevan Lake Basin in Armenia.

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>







### 5. USER INTERFACE GUIDE

PONTOS Data Cube's User Interface (UI) aims to provide end-users with the opportunity of accessing various integrated EO ARD datasets and perform analysis over defined regions of interest, i.e., PONTOS pilot sites, and time ranges. Moreover, the UI grants access to previously performed analyses. Users are also enabled to generate outputs either in a visual manner (images) or as data products in GeoTIFF or NetCDF format.

This guide section is designed to provide essential information on the use of PONTOS Data Cube UI as well as instructions for the performance of analyses and extraction of the outputs.

### 5.1 HOW TO LOGIN/ REGISTER

This section provides a quick guide on how to login or register on PONTOS Data Cube.

1) Visit PONTOS Data Cube on the address: <u>http://160.40.53.201:8000/</u>. At PONTOS Data Cube home page, please select "**Login**" (Figure 14.). In case there is an active user account, the login can take place with the user selected credentials (username and password).

PONTOS Data Cube	Nova Dela Cutte Monigar - Tani - Tani Henagar - Submit Fundi az Grup II
And the second s	Welcome to PONTOS Data Cube
	<ul> <li>FORT(S) details for the white the enterty with the statement of each investor that, investore end weather not investore that end on the statement of the statement of the form of end of the statement of the end of the COV of part and the</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Tarbali</li> <li>Strength and and locations for statistics location and it</li> <li>Strength and and statistics are approximate and approximation and approximation and approximate and approximate approximation and approximate approximate</li></ul>
Contraction of the local division of the loc	101001-lem Dass samaer
	Source 2 M2 is a speed modulus. The flow 22 Ha conset
inside tank	
<ol> <li>all note induces and supported. The support full-factor ensemption in all apply functions that supported in the support full-factor applies (in all apply functions) and an applications of the support (in bits of the support (international context)). A support bits of the support (international context) of the support bits of the support (international context).</li> <li>Direct Manuel - Basis (international context) of the support of the support bits of the support (international context).</li> </ol>	ange Divers, stadsta fontes und Daniel I on Brittani er doctani I de la Gomma Gomma I de la Gomma Gomma Gomma de la Gomma de la Gomma de la Gomma en en Stadsta Britanja de la gonz Altal Vectet I ganadoren sampene. Red de la Gomma de la gonz
POPED projection research and provide and an edge and	er Consential er freger von dieser das Lauren 2017 - 2001 anzen Ganzi Appen von Edit Bat
201	That In

Figure 14. PONTOS Data Cube home page.

For more information please contact CERTH at: imanakos@iti.gr, mbanti@iti.gr







Otherwise, click "**Register here**" to create a user account (Figure 15.). An account is required in order to use the UI features.



Figure 15. User registration form.

### 5.2 DATA CUBE MANAGER

The feature "Data Cube Manager" provides several options for exploring and viewing details of the datasets contained in PONTOS Data Cube (Figure 16.).



Figure 16. Data Cube Manager on PONTOS Data Cube UI.

For more information	on please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u> , <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>	Page 14 of 25
	*	







 <u>Data Cube Visualization</u>: Data Cube Visualization option provides visualization and browsing of the available satellite datasets contained in PONTOS Data Cube over PONTOS pilot sites. The available datasets are presented on an interactive map and they can be filtered by dataset type, i.e., Landsat 5, Landsat 7, Landsat 8 and Sentinel-2, or by date range (Figure 17.).



Figure 17. Filter available datasets by date range or dataset type on PONTOS Data Cube UI.

2) <u>Dataset Types:</u> This option lists all of the dataset type definitions that are adopted to describe the datasets contained in PONTOS Data Cube. Each dataset type consists of various data and metadata information about the corresponding platform, instrument, product type and measurements. Data and metadata information can be explored through the option "View definition" (Figure 18.). Please note that you should refer to each corresponding ingested product name according to Table 1. in Chapter 3.

CLOSS TORDER

-







	1	the second	And the Real Property lies	Sectores .	and the same	where the second s	A CONTRACTOR OF		
		one stars have been also and it is	nind (data	and a strength	wa vinea		2020202020		
1.4.9		- 17989						Lase-	
	12	6400	Pater 1	Income of	Price by	Baserments	Second second	Verlagen	Personal Company
•	*	*Owner, carry Oures	145,047,1	1.0	() (C (m))		where $(1) < 0$ is some signal static $\beta$ .	Version	Ver stand
•	۲	W down w leave	104.00	1.5	1.94.7	the station of schemes and share -		Second	som orderan
÷	4	Increase a care sector	14/01/0	20.181		cost-orar petrosectes	united to a set of the		
•	Ŧ	متحاركات بعاراته	pane,s	21,799		and and expression without	anial SUEI Course. Note contilla-	Veroberc.	Yerseine
•	ĸ	ميسيري ويستريبها سيستراط	10.347.9	- 10	-2540	ways a second second second second	and distributed when the	Ver-their	Var-sidema
•		The company and common	105.041.0		10.001		mental second strategy with the second second	Versiants	Versien
•	•	17 CONT-000 IN 12255 AM 20-17 (24)	14,741	10.1	1.941	8 MAR 9 MAR 17 YOM, 11 MM, 11 MM.	0000 11/00 (5-0001 mps) due to 1		
	2	10,4934,7/1,3834,28	Mang	179	(L)ert	the pair of the pair part and spars.	10007100000000000000000000000000000000		
	*	رفال بطالة وحبارين محاذرته	Delarge	31,703	++0%	للمبل وافعتر فتتحس فالديش والمفلء	under The Difference of the second state	www.cmepr	
•									

Figure 18. Exploration of data and metadata information of each dataset type.

3) **Dataset Viewer:** The dataset viewer presents in a table format all the data contained in the indexed and ingested products of PONTOS Data Cube. Through this option, the products can be filtered by product name, by time range (start and end date) as well as by spatial extents (Figure 19.).

			No investo i la	en in		1-3-4 1 1 1	· ±1-	and the state	Alex
	Delassers Sant production, the state data for several	an la c'anna a surrit, is a, i amba, da nan a an Mar an Anna a surrit, is an i amba, da nan a anna		+ 1. ek. vi . 44 =	p41-40-11	-			
	Production and the second seco								
100	A CONTRACT OF A DAY OF ANY		1.000		Parent Par	-	Loro (mit)	-	1 Parter
Filter by product name	at an White of a date	COURSE SAFETS - SPACE	108847.2	1.1	11965	144.9.5	44.60		6 L.S.B.
	Set Of Task	19892 Had ad upped to be	train ?	0.	142195		101-00	1610 01444	1 1948
	- A AND	main a crumatika in facility	146472	n.	ALC: NO.	2.811	10.3 - 630	History	1 1527
	Maradine	1008212010/10440012110	were -	FF	125-45	2.01.8	101-01	HO 1812 H	1 1-677
dier by spatial excepts <	(Louis	TRUCK WHEN HAVE A REAL	Isterna t	1.1	115471	20.52	1110, 1711	-	a. 1.070
	- Ser Corplan	(694.70 a Stochack To)	Internal of	1.10	11,2471	20.00	$V = \{ x_1, x_2 \in \mathbb{R} \}$		e
		0.000 4040-1000-001	10000-1	0.00	11.3674	110.01	11410		0.546
	Not contract	10510-047-00-0718	110040-	0.0	11:0010	1115.4	1444		4,150
	and all a	(00004710-0010-0010-0004-00400)	1000	100	1407075	0.90 ( -0.0	101010	10.000	4.782
		(where it is "Characterian in	1000	- 61	1891/5	4041-0	1111-111	les services in	1.162
		Perchang mediated and	whether	n.	- 0248	1018	10.00	1010310-014	1. 1617
That's fits mg		Service Presentation and	wither ?	15	122449	2-0-1 8	13, 8, 234	100 (10021)	0.1407
	and I make	an or the second hadronic and	latine's	- ee.	11240	2040	$1 \left( r q, r \right) =$	10-4 05011	8. Lev
	Commentary and a second second second	DAME REAL PROPERTY AND	loning.	1.0	111,8625	10.00	$V(A^*, B) \gg$		1.140
		- Meril Metallowin, States of	10000.0	1.8	11116-14	100.00	CC.F.F.	$ W_{i}  \geq  W_{i}  =  W_{i} $	<ul> <li>Letter</li> </ul>
		counting a restriction of the pro-				1.1			11

Figure 19. Dataset Viewer options.

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>







### 5.3 PERFORMING AN ANALYSIS

In this section, an example of how to perform an analysis through the PONTOS Data Cube UI is presented. For this example, we will use the tool "Fractional Cover".

- 1) Visit PONTOS Data Cube on the address: <u>http://160.40.53.201:8000/</u> and login or register (please refer to section 5.1).
- 2) From the top menu bar, please select "**Tools**". Under the "Tools" menu, hover over "**Land**" group and select "**Fractional Cover**" (Figure 20.).



Figure 20. Tool selection.

3) You will be redirected to a page in which all the study areas that this tool can be applied, i.e., PONTOS pilot sites, will be listed (Figure 21.). Out of this page, please **select the pilot area** that you wish to perform the analysis simply by clicking the name of the area. For this example, we will perform the analysis for the pilot area "AM – Sevan Lake & Sevan Lake Basin".









Figure 21. Pilot area selection.

4) Upon the selection of the pilot area to perform the analysis, you will be redirected to the selected tool analysis page. You will mainly notice five panels: A) Details panel, B) Satellite selection panel, C) Data Selection panel, D) Geospatial bounds and Date selection panel and E) Status panel (Figure 22.).

In order to run your analysis, select on "Satellite selection panel" the corresponding **satellite** mission dataset contained in PONTOS Data Cube that you wish to harness in your analysis. The available options are Landsat 5, Landsat 7, Landsat 8 and Sentinel-2. Right after, please select the **compositing method** in "Data Selection panel". On this example, we will use Landsat 8 and "Max NDVI pixel" as compositing method.

CLOSS HORDER

-









Figure 22. Feature panels on selected tool.

5) For the selection of a **sub-area** out of the map, please click and drag a rectangle anywhere within the orange box in order to define the region of interest for the analysis. In this way, you choose a spatial subset of the data. The orange box represents the maximum extents of the data contained in PONTOS Data Cube for each pilot (Figure 23.).



Figure 23. Maximum extents of the contained data and user defined analysis region.









- 6) The last step before performing your analysis is to select the temporal bounds (**start and end dates**) in the "Geospatial bounds and Date selection panel" in order to choose the temporal subset of the data.
- 7) Once all required fields for the analysis are filled, please click on the "**Submit**" button to start performing the Fractional Cover tool analysis (Figure 24.).

PONTOS Data Cube	the initial lease in the ballinger and the second sec
	The moore is
- 1.	Charles and the second s
Own Selection	
Deingatist Beards: Strategy be allow	
mitoriginal Bactoriana	
Apriles Inclus	
Humming Lasks	RIA ALLARCIA
1	DALL ET INT
1	Stand Lun 2
2	WHE LE HE WALL

Figure 24. Perform the analysis by clicking on "Submit".

8) A new task labeled as "Fractional Cover Query" will appear on the status panel below "Running tasks". The red progress bar will show the progress of the analysis. The amount of time required for the analysis to be completed depends on the type of analysis as well as the chosen spatial and temporal extents (Figure 25.).



For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>







9) When the process is finished, the result will appear on the map. To view the information about the legend of this tool, please select the drop-shaped icon on the top right corner of the map (Figure 26.).



Figure 26. Output of the process.

### 5.4 TASK MANAGER

The "Task Manager" feature provides a display in a table format of a tool's completed analysis performances and it can be accessed from PONTOS Data Cube home page. It also provides the option of the output's downloading in order to be used for further analysis.

1) From the top menu bar, please select "**Task Manager**". Under the "Task Manager" menu, hover over the tool that the recent analysis was performed by. In this example, "**Land**" group and "**Fractional Cover**" should be selected (Figure 27.).







				/		
PONTOS Data Culta		NelstativeReager -	-	Indiana -	Second Second of L	Auguinentes Pile
		Welcon Cube Proto seto Ser reterior Ser reterior Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Ser control Control Ser control Control Ser control Control Ser control Ser control Control Ser control Control Ser control Control Ser control Control Ser control C	ne lo er reserver van eek rak onderend ri and access to rec'honis fan eec'honis fan	Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna	Lance derit Sochal Rocca Spink / Rocca Spink	
		Formation A	S2410 m	- ) ( a - a brona a) A I a - ariadon of Jan A	le, dani Ne kananti, 1995 Santan	
A structure     A data of a function of the probability of the structure of the struct	If The splatic particle is a static Graph of the splatic static static strategy of model of the splatic static strategy of model of the splatic static strategy of the splatic static strategy of the splatic strategy of the splatic strategy of the splatic strategy of the splatic strategy splatic strategy of the splatic strategy splatic strategy of the splatic strategy splatic strategy of the splatic strategy of the splatic strategy of the splatic strategy of the splatic strategy of the splatic strategy o	Connect March, Franke, and Connect Andrews (NY 1955) STATE Specific Connection (Sec.) (NY 1955) State (Sec.)	iyona Mikehoroj Mi Tarribar		ŧ	
MAY Tel providen e	nand laing tai Milly (2016) Sanga	1.000 Yo 1.000 Add A		CCF with the VA	peeren laku jar	
44-110-000-0	-					

Figure 27. Tool's task manager selection.

2) You will be redirected to a page with the history of the previously performed analyses for a specific tool. Information about the satellite, the area of the analysis as well as the temporal and spatial extents are provided. Please click on the "**Details**" button in order to access statistics and outputs for the selected performance (Figure 28.).

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>

CLOSS BORDER



-





25

## Common borders. Common solutions.

Citin				- AN ARA	12. 10.	HE MANAGE & STOLE	LONDO	Local and the	Otens
								iner-	
*****	*+++	Latter March	Lat. (+Pre-		- man	24	fra	transfer 1	And -
-		11-10-	4.00	atore	of all a			and a service of	244
			-1.00	41.15	4-81	render and states.		share when	Sil
-	agera	10.00		4114	41.002	www.eastraty	1.0	lanes out.	(Sec.)
		0.001000	1.00	and the second s	1000	Scott favoritely	1.00	1112-00205-0	Contain 1
	(384 	000 	Offer Note: Note: and Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Note: Not	Note:         Note:         Headson         Laboration           Note:         Note:         Headson         Headson           Not:         Headson         Headson         Headson	Nella Serie Constraint Constraint Series Constra	Color Description of the second secon	Odd         Date:         D	Obs         Des Des Merchands         Des	Obs         Des Des Nexterner, Des Delance, Contractor, Location, Location, Des Delance, Contractor, Des Delance, D

Figure 28. Access the details of a performed analysis.

3) Details of a performed analysis are presented. Information about the task details, task metadata, task parameters and scene metadata is available. On the panel "Task Outputs", the option to download the output of the analysis in NetCDF or GeoTIFF format is provided. Please click either on "Download nc" or on "Download tif" (Figure 29.).



Figure 29. Download the output of the analysis.

For more information please contact CERTH at:	<u>imanakos@iti.gr, mbanti@iti.gr</u>	Page 23 of
---	---------------------------------------	------------







### 6. EXERCISE

**Objective:** The aim of this exercise is the user to become acquainted with the use of PONTOS Data Cube upon the comprehension of Chapter 5.

Hands-on practice: Please follow and complete the next steps. Feel free to improvise!

- 1) Visit PONTOS Data Cube.
- 2) Register or login.
- 3) From the top menu bar of PONTOS Data Cube home page, please select the group and tool of your choice.
- 4) Please select the pilot area that you wish to perform the analysis.
- 5) Navigate over the feature panels and select the satellite mission dataset that you wish to use for your analysis and the compositing method.
- 6) Following on, please define a specific sub-area out of the map.
- 7) Please select the start and end dates that you wish to perform the analysis.
- 8) Congratulations, now you are good to go! Please click on the "Submit" button to start the performance of your analysis.
- 9) Once the output of the process appears on the map, please click on the drop-shaped icon on the top right corner of the map and try to interpret the result.
- 10) If you wish to access the information of the analysis and download the output, please visit "Task Manager" from the top menu bar.
- 11) Select the group and the tool that you just performed the analysis.
- 12) Out of the table on the next page, please click on the "Details" button of the analysis you just performed.
- 13) Navigate over the details and metadata of the analysis.
- 14) Download the output as a NetCDF or GeoTIFF file.

#### REFERENCES

- Appel, M., & Pebesma, E. (2019). On-demand processing of data cubes from satellite image collections with the gdalcubes library. *Data*, 4(3). https://doi.org/10.3390/data4030092
- CEOS. (2017). The CEOS Open Data Cube Initiative. https://docs.wixstatic.com/ugd/f9d4ea\_1aea90c5bb7149c8a730890c0f791496.pdf
- Chatenoux, B., Richard, J.-P., Guigoz, Y., Poussin, C., & Giuliani, G. (2019). *Bringing Open Data Cube into Practice. Workshop Material.* (Issue July). http://www.swissdatacube.ch

For more information please contact CERTH at: imanakos@iti.gr, mbanti@iti.gr

Page 24 of 25







- Dhu, T., Giuliani, G., Juárez, J., Kavvada, A., Killough, B., Merodio, P., Minchin, S., & Ramage, S. (2019). National Open Data Cubes and Their Contribution to Country-Level Development Policies and Practices. *Data*, 4(4), 144. https://doi.org/10.3390/data4040144
- Giuliani, G., Egger, E., Italiano, J., Poussin, C., Richard, J. P., & Chatenoux, B. (2020). Essential variables for environmental monitoring: What are the possible contributions of earth observation data cubes? *Data*, 5(4), 1–25. https://doi.org/10.3390/data5040100
- Guerschman, J. (2016). *Fractional cover MODIS, CSIRO algorithm*. https://doi.org/10.4225/08/5848A3F19A7B3
- Kopp, S., Becker, P., Doshi, A., Wright, D. J., Zhang, K., & Xu, H. (2019). Achieving the Full Vision of Earth Observation Data Cubes. Data, 4(3), 94. https://doi.org/10.3390/data4030094
- Lymburner, L., Botha, E., Hestir, E., Anstee, J., Sagar, S., Dekker, A., & Malthus, T. (2016). Landsat 8: Providing continuity and increased precision for measuring multi-decadal time series of total suspended matter. *Remote Sensing of Environment*, 185, 108–118. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rse.2016.04.011
- Mueller, N., Lewis, A., Roberts, D., Ring, S., Melrose, R., Sixsmith, J., Lymburner, L., McIntyre, A., Tan, P., Curnow, S., & Ip, A. (2016). Water observations from space: Mapping surface water from 25years of Landsat imagery across Australia. *Remote Sensing of Environment*, 174, 341–352. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rse.2015.11.003
- Rizvi, S. R., Killough, B., Cherry, A., & Gowda, S. (2018). The CEOs data cube portal: A user-friendly, open source software solution for the distribution, exploration, analysis, and visualization of analysis ready data. *International Geoscience and Remote Sensing Symposium (IGARSS)*, 2018-July, 8639–8642. https://doi.org/10.1109/IGARSS.2018.8518727

For more information please contact CERTH at: <u>imanakos@iti.gr</u>, <u>mbanti@iti.gr</u>

CLOSS TORPER

-